
 

 
        

                                 Town Board Agenda 
  Town Hall – 11 S. Main Street, Pittsford – Lower Level 
                   Wednesday, December 6, 2023 – 6:00 PM 
    

 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Minutes 
 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of November 6, 2023 
 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of November 21, 2023 
 
Legal Matters 
 Public Comment 
 Elderberry Express, Inc. Agreement 
 Monroe County Snow and Ice Agreement 
  
Financial Matters            

Public Comment 
Surplus Inventory 
Budget Transfer 

 
Personnel Matters 
 Public Comment 
 Hiring Resolution 
  
Other Business 
 
Public Comment 
 
Adjournment 

SUPERVISOR 
William A. Smith, Jr. 

                              COUNCIL MEMBERS 
    Kate Bohne Munzinger, Deputy Supervisor 
                                             Cathy Koshykar  
                                                       Kim Taylor 
                                       Stephanie Townsend 



PUBLIC MEETINGS OF THE TOWN BOARD are IN-PERSON at TOWN HALL 

ATTENDING IN PERSON 

Comments: 
As always, comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town 
taxes, owners of businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the 
resident’s behalf.  To comment you must sign in at the sign-in desk. 

VIEWING FROM HOME 

1. Live

The Town Board meeting will stream live through our cable access station’s streaming portal.  Please use 
the following link: 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscree 
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true 

You can watch on any computer, tablet, smart phone or web capable TV.  If you log in before the meeting 
starts and see an error message, refresh your screen at 6:00 pm when the board meeting starts and 
you can view the meeting live while it is happening. 

Comments: 

Comments are open to Pittsford residents, owners of property in the Town who pay Town taxes, owners 
of businesses in the Town, attorneys or agents designated by a resident to speak on the resident’s behalf. 

• at any time before 2:30pm on the day of the meeting (a) by email to
comments@townofpittsford.org; (b) by submitting it in writing, through the drop slot to 
the right of the front door at Town Hall (11 South Main Street); or (c) by U.S. Mail to the 
Town Clerk, for receipt no later than 2:30 pm on the day of the meeting;
and, in addition,

• at any time during the meeting by email to comments@townofpittsford.org

• All comments submitted should include the name and street address of the 
commenter. Comments from residents will be read by the Town Clerk at the 
appropriate point of the meeting.  The Clerk will read your name, but not your street 
address unless you ask for it to be read.

2. On-Demand Video

As always, video will be uploaded to our cable access station’s streaming portal subsequent to the 
meeting, usually within a few days.  It is available on demand.  You can see it here: 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscree
n=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true 

https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/819?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
mailto:comments@townofpittsford.org
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true
https://videoplayer.telvue.com/player/FcqTL0OYMCGU6WlccUApyUL3twz4dm9V/stream/690?fullscreen=false&showtabssearch=true&autostart=true


Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 6, 2023 
 

DRAFT  
TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TOWN BOARD 
NOVEMBER 6, 2023 

 
Proceedings of a meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, November 6, 2023, at 6:00 P.M. 
local time in the Lower-Level Meeting Room of Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, in person.  
 
PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilmembers Cathy Koshykar, Katherine B. 

Munzinger, Stephanie Townsend and Kim Taylor. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members: Robert Koegel, Town Attorney; Paul Schenkel, Commissioner of 

Public Works; Renee McQuillen, Town Clerk; Jessie Hollenbeck, Recreation 
Director; Kelly Eldred, Assistant to the Supervisor; Shelley O’Brien, 
Communications Director; Spencer Bernard, Chief of Staff.  

 
ATTENDANCE: Thirty-two members of the public along with an interpreter attended. 
 
Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and invited all to join in the 
Pledge to Flag.  
 
SUPERVISORS ANNOUCEMENTS 
Due to the time change this past weekend a reminder for all to exercise caution when driving home in 
the early evening as it is now darker.  
 
Event planning will soon begin for the total solar eclipse in 2024.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED 2024 TOWN BUDGET 
Supervisor Smith reviewed the proposed budget for 2024 and then opened the public hearing. 
Following comments from Michael Slade and Ann Slocomb the hearing was declared closed.  
 
MINUTES OF THE OCTOBER 17 MEETING APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the minutes of the Town Board meeting of October 17, 2023, was offered by 
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, Councilmember Taylor seconded, and members voted as follows:  Ayes: 
Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the October 17, 2023, Town Board meeting are approved. 
 
LEGAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were submitted.  
 
INSURANCE COVERAGE/TAX BONDING FOR 2023-2024 FOR TOWN CLERK AND 
RECEIVER OF TAXES APPROVED 
A Resolution to authorize insurance coverage for the 2023-2024 Tax Collections was offered by 
Supervisor Smith, seconded by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by the members as follows: 
Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
  



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 6, 2023 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows:  
RESOLVED by the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The Town Board hereby guarantees the surety, form and amount of the official 
undertaking for the faithful performance of the duties of the Town Clerk and Receiver of Taxes, as 
follows: 

 
Type of undertaking:  Insurance coverage for Town Clerk and Receiver of Taxes 

  
Amount: $100,000.00 per employee Public Employee Dishonesty Coverage with additional 
indemnity of $200,000.00, including Faithful Performance of Duty, for the Receiver of Taxes  
   

Section 2. A true copy of this resolution shall be affixed to the undertaking to indicate this Board's 
approval thereon in accordance with Town Law §25. 
 
SET PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD-159 
A Resolution to set the public hearing for the proposed Sewer District Extension JHSD-159 was made 
by Councilmember Townsend, seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted on by members as 
follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 

WHEREAS, Petitions, signed by the owners, Mark W. Morris & Joy E. Morris, of the proposed 
“Extension JHSD-159” to the Pittsford Sewer District, have been presented to the Town Board of 
Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, the said proposed Extension being located, in general terms, on 
the real property located at the address 495 Mendon Road, Pittsford, New York, all as is more 
particularly set forth in the Petition; and 

 
WHEREAS, no public monies are proposed to be expended for the Extension of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sewer Entrance, Connection and other County Fees have been paid by the 

owners of the unit within the Extension are in the aggregate amount of $524.32; 
 
NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a public hearing be held before the Town Board of the Town 

of Pittsford, at the Town of Pittsford Town Hall, on November 21, 2023 at 6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, 
to consider the said Petition and to hear all persons interested therein, and for such other and further 
action on the part of the Town Board with relation to the said Petition as may be required by law or proper 
in the premises; and it is further 

 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a copy of the within Order be duly published in The Daily 

Record, which paper is designated as the official paper for such publication, and a copy of the said Order 
be posted on the bulletin board of the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, maintained pursuant 
to Section 30 of the Town Law, not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date of 
the said hearing. 
 
SET PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION SWBC-52 
A Resolution to set the public hearing for the proposed Sewer District Extension SWBC-52 was made 
by Councilmember Taylor, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members as 
follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 6, 2023 
WHEREAS, Petitions, signed by the owners, Mark J. Frohm & Celeste S. Frohm, of the 

proposed “Extension SWBC-52” to the Pittsford Sewer District, have been presented to the Town Board 
of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, the said proposed Extension being located, in general terms, on 
the real properties located at the addresses N Wilmarth Rd and 126 N Wilmarth Rd, Pittsford, New 
York, all as is more particularly set forth in the Petition; and 

 
WHEREAS, no public monies are proposed to be expended for the Extension of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sewer Entrance, Connection and other County Fees have been paid by the 

owners of each unit within the Extension are in the aggregate amount of $991.32; 
 
NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a public hearing be held before the Town Board of the Town 

of Pittsford, at the Town of Pittsford Town Hall, on November 21, 2023 at 6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, 
to consider the said Petition and to hear all persons interested therein, and for such other and further 
action on the part of the Town Board with relation to the said Petition as may be required by law or proper 
in the premises; and it is further 

 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a copy of the within Order be duly published in The Daily 

Record, which paper is designated as the official paper for such publication, and a copy of the said Order 
be posted on the bulletin board of the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, maintained pursuant 
to Section 30 of the Town Law, not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date of 
the said hearing. 
 
SET PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD-158 
 A Resolution to set the public hearing for the proposed Sewer District Extension JHSD-158 was made 
by Councilmember Townsend, seconded by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, and voted on by members 
as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows:                                                                                                                                                       

WHEREAS, Petitions, signed by the owners, Joshua Dougherty & Alicia Dougherty, of the 
proposed “Extension JHSD-158” to the Pittsford Sewer District, have been presented to the Town 
Board of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, the said proposed Extension being located, in general 
terms, on the real property located at the address 184 W Bloomfield Road, Pittsford, New York, all as is 
more particularly set forth in the Petition; and 

 
WHEREAS, no public monies are proposed to be expended for the Extension of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sewer Entrance, Connection and other County Fees have been paid by the 

owners of the unit within the Extension are in the aggregate amount of $1,178.32; 
 
NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is 
 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a public hearing be held before the Town Board of the Town 

of Pittsford, at the Town of Pittsford Town Hall, on November 21, 2023 at 6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, 
to consider the said Petition and to hear all persons interested therein, and for such other and further 
action on the part of the Town Board with relation to the said Petition as may be required by law or proper 
in the premises; and it is further 

 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that a copy of the within Order be duly published in The Daily 

Record, which paper is designated as the official paper for such publication, and a copy of the said Order 
be posted on the bulletin board of the Town Clerk of the Town of Pittsford, New York, maintained pursuant 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 6, 2023 
to Section 30 of the Town Law, not less than ten (10) nor more than twenty (20) days prior to the date of 
the said hearing. 
 
FINANCE MATTERS  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were submitted.  
 
ADOPTION OF THE 2024 BUDGET 
Following discussion among board members, Supervisor Smith made a motion to adopt the 2024 Town 
Budget, Deputy Supervisor Munzinger seconded, and it was voted on by members as follows: Ayes: 
Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the 2024 Proposed Budget, Sewer Rents, Special Districts, and Debt Service 
budgets be approved as the 2024 Adopted Budget.  
 
RECREATIONAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were submitted.  
 
APPROVAL FOR THE 2024 WINTER PROGRAMS 
A motion to approve the 2024 Recreation winter program schedule was made by Deputy Supervisor 
Munzinger, seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, 
Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.  
  
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Recreation Department 2024 winter programs are approved, and the Town 
Supervisor is authorized to sign instructor contracts as required.  
 
PERSONNAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were submitted.  
 
HIRING/PERSONNEL ADJUSTMENTS APPROVED 
A Resolution to approve the recommendations for new hires and status and/or salary changes was 
offered for approval by Deputy Supervisor Munzinger, seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted 
on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolution was declared passed as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the appointment for the following employee(s): 
 
The following employee(s) are recommended as a new hire based on the recommendation of the 
Functional Coordinator(s) for these areas:  
Name    Dept       Position   Rate   Date of Hire  
Charles Bennett Highway Seasonal Laborer  $18.10  11/04/2023 
 
This is subject to completion of the proper reviews and background checks for these candidates   
and appropriate sign off by the Town Board representative.  
 
 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 6, 2023 
The following employee(s) is recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to a change 
in status. 
Name  Position  Reason   Rate  Effective Date 
Matthew Rickett General Foreman Replacement  $39.60  10/16/2023 
Rileigh LeVan Rec Asst  Group Leader  $15.00  10/23/2023 
Brian Shamp  Working Foreman Replacement  $35.20  11/06/2023 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Councilmember Taylor extended her congratulations to the following Pittsford student athlete teams for 
their sectional victories: Girls Gymnastics, Girls Swimming, Mendon Girls Field Hockey, Mendon Boys 
Soccer, Sutherland Girls Volleyball and Sutherland Boys and Girls Cross Country Teams.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Board members heard comments from Katherine Sinclaire and Audrey Clignett.  
 
With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:47 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Renee McQuillen 
Town Clerk 
 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
 

DRAFT  
TOWN OF PITTSFORD 

TOWN BOARD 
November 21, 2023 

 
Proceedings of a meeting of the Pittsford Town Board held on Tuesday, November 21, 2023, at 6:00 
P.M. local time in the Lower-Level Meeting Room of Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, in person.  
 
PRESENT: Supervisor William A. Smith, Jr.; Councilmembers Cathy Koshykar, Katherine B. 

Munzinger, Stephanie Townsend and Kim Taylor. 
 
ABSENT:  None. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Staff Members: Robert Koegel, Town Attorney; Paul Schenkel, Commissioner of 

Public Works; Laura Beeley, Deputy Town Clerk; Kelly Eldred, Assistant to the 
Supervisor; Shelley O’Brien, Communications Director; Spencer Bernard, Chief 
of Staff.  

 
ATTENDANCE: Twelve members of the public along with an interpreter attended. 
 
Supervisor Smith called the Town Board meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. and invited all to join in the 
Pledge to Flag.  
 
SUPERVISORS ANNOUCEMENTS 
Supervisor Smith advised November 11 was the anniversary of the Treaty of Canandaigua of 1794, 
between the Haudenosaunee Confederation and the United States, by which the United States 
acquired the territory that today includes Pittsford. 
 
Candlelight Night is on Tuesday-December 5th from 5pm to 8pm. 
 
Next town board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, December 6, to accommodate Candlelight 
Night.  
 
Town and Village Historian Audrey Johnson will be retiring at the end of November, after 44 years 
of service.  
 
Supervisor Smith wishes everyone a Happy Thanksgiving.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD – 158, SEWER DISTRICT 
EXTENSION JHSD -159 AND SEWER District SWBC-52 
 
Supervisor Smith opened the public hearing for all three Sewer Districts simultaneously, asking 
for public comments and hearing none.  Supervisor Smith then closed the public hearing.  
 
Supervisor Smith made a motion to approve Sewer District Extension JHSD -158, SEWER 
DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD -159 AND SEWER District SWBC-52, seconded by 
Councilmember Taylor, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend and Smith. Nays: none.  
 
The Resolutions were declared carried as follows: 
 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
 
SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD – 158 

WHEREAS, a Petition having been duly presented to the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, 
Monroe County, New York, together with the necessary map and information which requests an Extension 
to the Pittsford Sewer District, to be known as “Extension JHSD-158”,  
 WHEREAS, the aforesaid Petition was signed by owners of the property within the proposed 
Extension to the District; and 

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by the Town Board on the 6th day of November, 2023, 
for the hearing of all persons interested in the matter to be held on the 21st day of November, 2023, at 
6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, at the Pittsford Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, Town of Pittsford, New 
York; and 

WHEREAS, due proof of publication and posting of the said Order has been duly filed with the 
Clerk of the said Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the hearing required by the said Order has been duly held, and it appears from the 
said Petition that the proposed Extension to the District does not require any expenditure of money for 
the construction or acquisition of the improvement therein, and does not require the financing of the cost 
thereof by the issuance of any bonds, notes, certificates of any indebtedness of said Town; and 

WHEREAS, the within action is a Type II action, pursuant to the SEQRA regulations published at 
6 NYCRR § 617.5(c)(13), requiring no further environmental review by the Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the permission of the Comptroller of the State of New York is not required for the 
Extension to the District; 

NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is unanimously  
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that 
(a) The Petition is signed and acknowledged or approved as required by law and is otherwise 

sufficient; 
(b) The property and the sole property owners within the Extension to the District are benefited 

thereby; 
(c) The property and the sole property owners benefited are included within the limits of the 

Extension to the District;  
(d) The expenses of Maintenance of the Extension to the District are to be paid by the property 

owners annually on a benefit basis; and 
(e) It is in the public interest to grant in whole the relief sought; and it is further 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that Extension “JHSD-158” to the Pittsford Sewer District, be and 

the same hereby is created, and that the boundaries of the Extension, as hereby created, are as set forth 
in “Exhibit 1” annexed hereto, and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that all improvements to the sewer system required for the 
Extension will be constructed or caused to be constructed by the Petitioners, at the expense of the 
Petitioners; and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to record in the Monroe 
County Clerk’s Office and file with the New York state Office of Audit and Control certified copies of the 
within Resolution, as required by law.  

SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION JHSD – 159 
 
 WHEREAS, a Petition having been duly presented to the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, 
Monroe County, New York, together with the necessary map and information which requests an Extension 
to the Pittsford Sewer District, to be known as “Extension JHSD-159”; and 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
 WHEREAS, the aforesaid Petition was signed by owners of the property within the proposed 
Extension to the District; and 

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by the Town Board on the 6th day of November, 2023, 
for the hearing of all persons interested in the matter to be held on the 21st day of November, 2023, at 
6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, at the Pittsford Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, Town of Pittsford, New 
York; and 

WHEREAS, due proof of publication and posting of the said Order has been duly filed with the 
Clerk of the said Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the hearing required by the said Order has been duly held, and it appears from the 
said Petition that the proposed Extension to the District does not require any expenditure of money for 
the construction or acquisition of the improvement therein, and does not require the financing of the cost 
thereof by the issuance of any bonds, notes, certificates of any indebtedness of said Town; and 

WHEREAS, the within action is a Type II action, pursuant to the SEQRA regulations published at 
6 NYCRR § 617.5(c)(13), requiring no further environmental review by the Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the permission of the Comptroller of the State of New York is not required for the 
Extension to the District; 

NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is unanimously  
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that 
(f) The Petition is signed and acknowledged or approved as required by law and is otherwise 

sufficient; 
(g) The property and the sole property owners within the Extension to the District are benefited 

thereby; 
(h) The property and the sole property owners benefited are included within the limits of the 

Extension to the District;  
(i) The expenses of Maintenance of the Extension to the District are to be paid by the property 

owners annually on a benefit basis; and 
(j) It is in the public interest to grant in whole the relief sought; and it is further 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that Extension “JHSD-159” to the Pittsford Sewer District, be and 

the same hereby is created, and that the boundaries of the Extension, as hereby created, are as set forth 
in “Exhibit 1” annexed hereto, and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that all improvements to the sewer system required for the 
Extension will be constructed or caused to be constructed by the Petitioners, at the expense of the 
Petitioners; and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to record in the Monroe 
County Clerk’s Office and file with the New York state Office of Audit and Control certified copies of the 
within Resolution, as required by law. 

SEWER DISTRICT EXTENSION SWBC – 52 
 

WHEREAS, a Petition having been duly presented to the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, 
Monroe County, New York, together with the necessary map and information which requests an Extension 
to the Pittsford Sewer District, to be known as “Extension SWBC-52”; and 
 WHEREAS, the aforesaid Petition was signed by owners of the properties within the proposed 
Extension to the District; and 

WHEREAS, an Order was duly adopted by the Town Board on the 6th day of November, 2023, 
for the hearing of all persons interested in the matter to be held on the 21st day of November, 2023, at 
6:00 o’clock P.M., Local Time, at the Pittsford Town Hall, 11 South Main Street, Town of Pittsford, New 
York; and 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
WHEREAS, due proof of publication and posting of the said Order has been duly filed with the 

Clerk of the said Town Board; and 
WHEREAS, the hearing required by the said Order has been duly held, and it appears from the 

said Petition that the proposed Extension to the District does not require any expenditure of money for 
the construction or acquisition of the improvement therein, and does not require the financing of the cost 
thereof by the issuance of any bonds, notes, certificates of any indebtedness of said Town; and 

WHEREAS, the within action is a Type II action, pursuant to the SEQRA regulations published at 
6 NYCRR § 617.5(c)(13), requiring no further environmental review by the Town Board; and 

WHEREAS, the permission of the Comptroller of the State of New York is not required for the 
Extension to the District; 

NOW, ON MOTION duly made and seconded, it is unanimously  
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that 
(k) The Petition is signed and acknowledged or approved as required by law and is otherwise 

sufficient; 
(l) All the properties and the sole property owners within the Extension to the District are 

benefited thereby; 
(m) All the properties and the sole property owners benefited are included within the limits of 

the Extension to the District;  
(n) The expenses of Maintenance of the Extension to the District are to be paid by the property 

owners annually on a benefit basis; and 
(o) It is in the public interest to grant in whole the relief sought; and it is further 
RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that Extension “SWBC-52” to the Pittsford Sewer District, be and 

the same hereby is created, and that the boundaries of the Extension, as hereby created, are as set forth 
in “Exhibit 1” annexed hereto, and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that all improvements to the sewer system required for the 
Extension will be constructed or caused to be constructed by the Petitioners, at the expense of the 
Petitioners; and it is further 

RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Town Clerk is hereby directed to record in the Monroe 
County Clerk’s Office and file with the New York state Office of Audit and Control certified copies of the 
within Resolution, as required by law.  

 

LEGAL MATTERS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Ed Doherty and Janice Bullard Pieterse submitted a comment. 
 
PITTSFORD OAKS, TOBEY PUD PARCELS 8 & 12 
A presentation was given by Danny Daniele, President of Daniele Family Companies and David Cox, 
MBA, PE Senior Associate Passero Associates. Town Board members had concerns and questions 
about several aspects of the application. It was also requested that there be another public forum on 
the Pittsford Oaks project in the next couple of weeks.    
 
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger offered a motion to accept the following application, seconded by 
Supervisor Smith, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
It is hereby resolved that the Town Board (1) accepts for processing the application of 2851 Clover, LLC 
for municipal approvals to construct approximately 191 high-quality residential apartment units on 
Tobey PUD Parcels 8 & 12 (the “Project”), (2) declares its intent to act as lead agency for a coordinated 
environmental review of the Project under the State Environmental Quality Review Act  (SEQRA), (3) 
refers the application to the Planning Board for an advisory report, (4) refers the application to the 
Design Review and Historic Preservation Board for review and comment, and (5) refers the application 
to the Commissioner of Public Works for his report on the feasibility and adequacy of the design 
elements of the application. 
 
COVENTRY RIDGE SUBDIVISION, OPEN SPACE E DEDICATION 
Councilmember Taylor motioned to accept the Open Space E Dedication, and it was seconded by 
Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 

WHEREAS, Theodore F. Spall, Jr. and Suzanne A. Spall, by “Offer of Dedication of Public 
Land”, dated November 7, 2023, (“Offer”), have offered to dedicate one (1) parcel of land in the Town of 
Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, consisting of approximately 12.322 acres of open space in Section 
4 of the Coventry Ridge Subdivision, designated Open Space “E,” has been presented to the Town 
Board of the Town of Pittsford, and it appearing therefrom to the satisfaction of the Town Board that the 
lands so offered for dedication have been and are properly surveyed and mapped and should be 
accepted as Lands of said Town, and that all claims for damage have been properly released; 
 NOW, on Motion duly made and seconded, it was 
 
 RESOLVED, that the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford does hereby consent that the aforesaid 
land, located in the Town of Pittsford, Monroe County, New York, and as more particularly described as 
set forth on Schedule A and depicted on Schedule B of the Offer, be accepted in dedication for use as 
“Rural Conservation Land” pursuant to Section 185-31 of the Town of Pittsford Code; and be it further  
 
 RESOLVED, that any taxes that are currently due or will become due on said parcels of land, as 
a result of the assessment roll in effect at the time of this acceptance, shall be the responsibility of the 
grantor dedicating the parcel of land to the Town. 

  
COVENTRY RIDGE SUBDIVISION ROAD DEDICATION, “BELLINGHAM CREEK” 
Supervisor Smith offered a motion to accept the road dedication of Bellingham Creek, seconded by 
Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, 
Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
  
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 

WHEREAS, a properly executed written offer to dedicate certain land in the Town of Pittsford, 
Monroe County, New York, dated November 10, 2023, for the purpose of establishing a  public highway, 
to be known as “Bellingham Creek,” in the Coventry Ridge Subdivision, Section 4, has been presented 
to the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford, together with a map thereof, and it appearing therefrom to the 
satisfaction to the Town Board that the lands so offered for dedication as a public highway have been 
and are properly offered and mapped and should be accepted as a public highway of said Town;  

 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby consent that a public highway, to be known as 

“Bellingham Creek,” in the Coventry Ridge Subdivision, Section 4, in the Town of Pittsford, Monroe 
County, New York be laid out in said Town of Pittsford, more particularly described as set forth on 
Schedule A and shown on Exhibit 1 annexed to said written offer, and the Town Superintendent of 
Highways is authorized to make an order laying out the lands described in said dedication; and it is further 

 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board does hereby consent that the land comprising the aforesaid 

public highways be accepted in dedication. 
 
PITTSFORD YOUTH SERVICES AGREEMENT 
An amendment to the agreement on section A, line 1- the written amount of “Sixty-Six Thousand, Nine 
Hundred Eighty Dollars” was amended to read “Sixty-Seven Thousand, Nine Hundred Eighty Dollars”.  
Deputy Supervisor Munzinger offered a motion to approve the proposed Pittsford Youth Services 
Agreement as amended, seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted on by members as follows: 
Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 

 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Supervisor be authorized to enter into and sign the proposed Agreement 
with Pittsford Youth Services for calendar year 2024. 
 
FINANCIAL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No comments were submitted.  
 
NOVEMBER VOUCHERS APPROVED 
Board members acknowledged review of the vouchers proposed for payment and a resolution to 
approve the proposed vouchers was offered by Councilmember Taylor, seconded by Councilmember 
Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes:  Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and 
Smith. Nays:  none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the November vouchers from numbers 163418-163851, totaling $1,111,383.06 were 
approved for payment. 
 
PERSONNAL MATTERS 
PUBLIC COMMENTS   
No comments were submitted.  
 
2024 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE APPROVED 
Supervisor Smith offered a Resolution to approve the proposed 2024 Holiday Schedule, seconded by 
Councilmember Taylor.  In discussion Councilmember Townsend recommended adding two additional 
floating holidays for year 2025 and beyond, to accommodate observances for religious holidays not on 
the calendar.  Board members expressed agreement.  Thereafter the motion was voted on by members 
as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared carried as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the 2024 Holiday Schedule for the Town of Pittsford full time and part-time staff be 
approved, respectively, as follows: 
2024 Schedule of Holidays 
New Year’s Day     Monday, January 1st  
Martin Luther King Day*    Monday, January 15th  
Presidents’ Day*     Monday, February 19th 
Good Friday     Friday, March 29th  
Memorial Day      Monday, May 27th  
Juneteenth      Wednesday, June 19th  
Independence Day     Thursday, July 4th  
Labor Day      Monday, September 2nd  
Columbus Day/Indigenous Peoples’ Day Monday, October 14th  
Veterans’ Day*     Monday, November 11th  



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
Thanksgiving Day     Thursday, November 28th   
Day after Thanksgiving    Friday, November 29th  
Christmas Day     Wednesday, December 25th  
Employee’s Birthday*  
Additional Floating Holiday* 
   
HIRING/PERSONNEL ADJUSTENTS APPROVED 
An amendment to the Hiring/Personnel list was made to correct the spelling of the name of Rachael 
George which is shown correctly below. 
 
A Resolution to approve the recommendations for new hires and status and/or salary changes was 
offered for approval by Councilmember Townsend, seconded by Councilmember Taylor, and voted on 
by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend and Smith. Nays: none. 
 
The Resolution was declared passed as follows: 
RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the appointment for the following employee(s): 
 

Name    Dept        Position  Rate   Date of Hire  
Maximillian Powers Highway  Seasonal Laborer $18.10  11/13/2023 
Steven Barrett  Court    Security  $30.00  11/30/2023 
Rachael George Seniors  REC Asst  $15.98  12/04/2023 
       
This is subject to completion of the proper reviews and background checks for these candidates   
and appropriate sign off by the Town Board representative.  
 
Name    Dept        Position  Rate   Date of Hire  
Maximillian Powers Highway  Seasonal Laborer $18.10  11/13/2023 
Steven Barrett  Court    Security  $30.00  11/30/2023 
Rachael George Seniors  REC Asst  $15.98  12/04/2023 
 
The following employee is recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to a change in 
status. 
 
Name   Position  Reason   Rate  Effective Date 
Jennifer Morrow Sr Center Prog Spec Replacement  $28.57  11/20/2023 
Patrick Dwyer MEO I   Replacement  $33.27  11/20/2023 
James Wintermute MEO II   Promotion  $27.33  11/20/2023 
Patrick Mullaney MEO II   Replacement  $27.33  11/20/2023 

    
Should the Board approve the above recommendation and personnel adjustment, the following    
resolution is being proposed, RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the appointment for the  
following employee(s): 
 
Name   Position  Reason   Rate  Effective Date 
Jennifer Morrow Sr Center Prog Spec Replacement  $28.57  11/20/2023 
Patrick Dwyer MEO I   Replacement  $33.27  11/20/2023 
James Wintermute MEO II   Promotion  $27.33  11/20/2023 
Patrick Mullaney MEO II   Replacement  $27.33  11/20/2023 

    
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Linda Servetnick and Janice Bullard Pieterse submitted a comment. 
 



Minutes of the Pittsford Town Board for November 21, 2023 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
Supervisor Smith made a motion to enter into an Executive Session to discuss a real estate matter, 
seconded by Councilmember Townsend, and voted on by members as follows: Ayes: Koshykar, 
Munzinger, Taylor, Townsend, and Smith. Nays: none. 
   
The motion carried and the Board entered Executive Session starting 7:21 P.M. The Town Board exited 
executive session and reconvened at 7:35 P.M. 
  
With no further business at this time, the meeting adjourned at 7:36 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Laura Beeley 
Deputy Town Clerk 
 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Town Board Members 

From: Robert B. Koegel 

Date: November 30, 2023 

Regarding: Elderberry Express, Inc. Agreement 
 

For Meeting On: December 6, 2023 
 
    
Ladies and Gentleman: 
 

Attached please find a copy of the signed agreement with Elderberry Express, Inc. This 
is a renewal of the Town’s annual agreement with the corporation, which provides senior citizen 
transportation services for residents of the Town.  

 
The agreement provides for payment by the Town of an annual subsidy to Elderberry 

Express, Inc. in the amount of $8,000.00, which is in the 2024 budget. This amount is $500 
higher than last year’s amount. 

 
The agreement also refers to the minimum of 100 square feet of office space we provide 

to Elderberry Express at the Senior Center, and that “Profit and Loss” reports from Elderberry 
Express will be provided to the Town Supervisor on a quarterly basis. 

 
The agreement has been signed.  Therefore, if acceptable, it would become effective 

upon ratification by this Board, with authorization for the Town Supervisor to sign nunc pro tunc 
(“now for then”).    
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

I move that the Town Board ratify the agreement between Elderberry Express, Inc. and 
the Town for services in 2024 and authorize the Town Supervisor’s  signature, nunc pro tunc.  
 









MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Paul Schenkel - Commissioner of Public Works 

Date: November 27, 2023 

Regarding: Monroe County Snow and Ice Agreement 
 

For Meeting On: December 6, 2023 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 

Attached is the proposed Intermunicipal Agreement with the Monroe County 
Department of Transportation so that the Town of Pittsford will be reimbursed for snow and ice 
control on County roads.  This new agreement will cover the 2023/24 winter season, and can 
be renewed for up to 4 additional years.  As you may recall, the term of the previous 5-year 
agreement ran from 2018 to 2023.  Monroe County DOT works with all Highway 
Superintendents across the county each year to adjust per mile pricing to reflect actual 
expenses.  Labor, material, equipment and seasonal adjustments are used to determine the 
per mile cost each season.  Services provided by the Town include snow removal and ice 
control as well as special activities related to installation of snow fence, and street sweeping. 
 
 This coming season, the payment to the Town for snow and ice removal of the 53.73 
lane miles of County roads is $4,290 per lane mile for a total of $230,490.46.  This is an 
increase of 9.43% from last season. 
 
 Based on my review, I recommend the Town Board authorize the Agreement with 
Monroe County for Snow and Ice Services for the 2023/2024 season. 
 

In the event the Town Board determines that the proposed action should be taken, the 
following Resolution language is suggested: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolved, that based on the recommendation of the Commissioner of Public Works, 

that the Town Board authorizes the Town Supervisor to sign the Agreement with Monroe 
County for Snow and Ice Services for the 2023/2024 season. 













































MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Brian Luke, Director of Finance 

Date: November 30, 2023 

Regarding: Surplus Inventory 
 

For Meeting On: December 6, 2023 

 

 
Attached is a list of surplus inventory for the Town Board to declare surplus for it to be 
removed from the Town’s inventory. 
 
Be it resolved that the attached list of inventory be declared surplus and be removed 
from the Town’s inventory. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asset   # Year Description Department Cost Disposition

16724 2009 Stihl 36" Chainsaw HWY 799.95$       Disposed

20555 2021 Bobcat T66 Skidsteer HWY 20,614.38$ Trade-In

18421 2019 Grill Highway Kitchenaid HWY 899.00$       Disposed

17518 2013 Radar Speed Sign Sierzega HWY 3,640.00$   Disposed

17195 2012 Plasma Cutter HWY 1,569.00$   Disposed

16471 2009 Welding Helmet Cronatron Eclipse 912 HWY 493.00$       Disposed

17210 2012 Backpack Blower Stihl HWY 399.00$       Disposed

17836 2014 Leaf Blower Stihl HWY 399.96$       Disposed



 
 11/30/2023 
 

Budget Transfer 
 

  

Be it resolved that the following is approved: 
 
That $22,000.00 be transferred from 1.1990.4000.1.1 (General Fund – Contingency) to 
1.2620.4400.2.1 (General Fund – Custodial Contracted Services) to cover costs for the 
remainder of the fiscal year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
To: Pittsford Town Board 

From: Cheryl Fleming, Personnel Director 

Date: November 27, 2023 

Regarding: Recommendations for Hiring/Personnel Adjustments 
 

For Meeting On: December 6, 2023 

 

1. The following employee is recommended for a status change and/or salary change due to a 

change in status. 

Name  Position  Reason   Rate  Effective Date 

Rory Bailey Shea Rec Asst  Addt’l Position  $15.00  11/27/2023 

Anna Young  Rec Asst  Addt’l Position  $15.00  11/27/2023 

Austin Norwood Laborer – FT  Replacement/Rehire $20.50  12/04/2023 

Jessica Tantalo Deputy Town Clerk Replacement  $26.28  12/11/2023 

Lila VanHoughton Library Page  Rehire   $14.20  12/18/2023 

John Young  GEO I   Promo   $29.74  01/01/2024 

    

Should the Board approve the above recommendation and personnel adjustment, the following    

resolution is being proposed, RESOLVED, that the Town Board approves the appointment for the  

following employee(s): 

Name  Position  Reason   Rate  Effective Date 

Rory Bailey Shea Rec Asst  Addt’l Position  $15.00  11/27/2023 

Anna Young  Rec Asst  Addt’l Position  $15.00  11/27/2023 

Austin Norwood Laborer – FT  Replacement/Rehire $20.50  12/04/2023 

Jessica Tantalo Deputy Town Clerk Replacement  $26.28  12/11/2023 

Lila VanHoughton Library Page  Rehire   $14.20  12/18/2023 

John Young  GEO I   Promo   $29.74  01/01/2024 

    

 

      




